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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA
ATLANTA DIVISION

MARY CHACHAS AND ANGELA
MOSLEY, individually, and on behalf of others
similarly situated, Case No.

Plaintiffs,
VS.

CENTRICSIT, LLC,

Defendant.

COLLECTIVE ACTION
COMPLAINT WITH JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs, Mary Chachas and Angela Mosley, by and through their attorneys JTB LAW
GROUP LLC and THE ORLANDO FIRM, P.C., as and for their Complaint against Defendant,
CentricsIT, LLC, allege of their own knowledge and conduct and upon information and belief as
to all other matters, as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiffs bring this collective action, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated, to recover monetary damages, liquidated damages, and costs, including
reasonable attorney’s fees, as a result of Defendant’s willful violations of the Federal Fair Labor
Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. 88 201 et seq. (“FLSA”) and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. §§ 516,
et seq.

2. Defendant violated the FLSA overtime requirement, 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(1) by

misclassifying Plaintiffs and other members of the FLSA Collective as salary-exempt employees
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and paying them a fixed weekly salary, without overtime pay calculated at time-and-a-half of
their regular rates of pay for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek.

3. Plaintiffs bring this claim for relief for violation of the FLSA, as a collective
action pursuant to Section 216(b) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), defined as follows:

All current and former employees of CentricsIT LLC who, at any
time during the period dating from three (3) years prior to the
commencement of this action through the date of judgment, worked
in the United States in “Centrics Support Services” performing
telephone and/or e-mail-based customer support to CentricsIT
LLC’s clients and were classified as exempt from the overtime
requirements of the FLSA.

4. Upon information and belief, for at least three (3) years prior to the filing of this
Complaint, Defendant has willfully and intentionally committed systematic and widespread
violations of the FLSA and corresponding regulations by failing to pay Plaintiffs and other
Customer Support Services Representatives proper overtime compensation for hours worked

over forty (40) in a given workweek.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ FLSA claims pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because Plaintiffs’ claims raise a federal question under 29 U.S.C. 8§ 201, et
seq.

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because its principal business
office and headquarters is in the State of Georgia.

7. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because
Defendant resides in this District, employs Customer Support Services Representatives in this

district, and a substantial portion of the events that give rise to the Plaintiffs’ claims occurred in
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this district.
PARTIES
Plaintiffs

8. Plaintiff Mary Chachas is a resident of Duluth, Georgia, and was employed by
Defendant as a Customer Support Services Representative from approximately March 2014
through early January 2017. Plaintiff Chachas signed a consent form to join this lawsuit, which is
attached as Exhibit 1.

9. Plaintiff Angela Mosley is a resident of Dacula, Georgia, and was employed by
Defendant as a Customer Support Services Representative from approximately September 2014
through early January 2017. Plaintiff Mosley signed a consent form to join this lawsuit, which is
attached as Exhibit 2.

Defendant

10. Defendant CentricsIT LLC is a limited liability company organized under the
laws of Georgia.

11.  Defendant’s central office is located at 3140 Northwoods Parkway, Suite 700,
Norcross, Georgia 30071.

12. Defendant CentricsIT LLC provides technical support service, IT hardware
maintenance on various products to customers worldwide.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

FLSA Coverage

13.  The FLSA applies in this case on an enterprise basis.

14. Defendant’s annual revenue exceeds $500,000.
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15. Defendant has had more than two employees engaged in interstate commerce.

16. Plaintiff and other similarly situated Customer Support Services Representatives
engaged in interstate commerce during their employment and therefore they were/are also
covered by the FLSA on an individual basis.

Defendant’s Employvment and Misclassification of Customer Support Services
Representatives

17. Defendant has and continues to employ a staff of Customer Support Services
Representatives whose primary duties were to respond to incoming calls and emails regarding
technical issues, check availability of products and updates, and assist with coordinating
deliveries of products and in-person technical support.

18. Defendant classified its Customer Support Services Representatives as exempt
employees and paid them a fixed salary, without overtime pay calculated at time-and-a-half of
their regular rates of pay for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek.

19. Prior to September 2015, Defendant did not pay its Customer Support Services
Representatives any additional compensation besides their annual salary.

20.  As a result of complaints from Customer Support Services Representatives
regarding being required to work over forty (40) hours per week without receiving any
compensation for hours over (40) in a workweek, in or around September 2015, Defendant
started paying Customer Support Services Representatives a fixed sum of approximately $250
for each weekend he or she was assigned to be “on-call,” which rotated amongst each Customer
Support Services Representative every several weeks. In or around August 2016, Defendant
increased the on-call payment to a fixed sum of approximately $400.

21. Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives, including Plaintiffs,
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were not employed in a bona fide executive, administrative, or professional capacity, or in the
capacity of outside salespersons, see 29 U.S.C. § 213(a)(1), because their primary job duties did
not include any of the following or any combination thereof:

a. management of Defendant or of any customarily recognized department or
subdivision of Defendant;

b. customary or regular direction of the work of two or more other
employees;
C. office or non-manual work directly related to the management or general

business operations of Defendant or its customers;

d. exercise of discretion and independent judgment with respect to matters of
significance; or

e. making sales;

22.  Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives, including Plaintiffs, did
not have authority to hire or fire other employees, nor did they make suggestions or
recommendations as to the hiring, firing, advancement, promotion or any other change of status
of other employees that were given particular weight.

23.  Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives, including Plaintiffs, did
not fall within the FLSA overtime exemption applicable to the positions of “computer systems
analyst, computer programmer, software engineer, or other similarly skilled worker,” see 29
U.S.C. 8 213(a)(17), because their primary job duties did not include any of the following or any
combination thereof:

a. applying systems analysis techniques and procedures, including consulting

with users, to determine hardware, software, or system functional
specifications;

b. designing, developing, documenting, analyzing, creating, testing, or
modifying computer systems or programs, including prototypes, based on
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and related to user or system design specifications; or

C. designing, documenting, testing, creating, or modifying computer
programs related to machine operating systems.

24, Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives worked from offices at
the company’s headquarters in Norcross, Georgia, as well as from their homes.

25. Defendant required its Customer Support Services Representatives, including
Plaintiffs, to work full-time schedules consisting of five (5) shifts per week, each lasting
approximately nine (9) hours, and also required them to perform additional work before and after
their scheduled shifts, and on days they were not scheduled to work full shifts.

26. On most shifts, Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives,
including Plaintiffs, did not receive a free, uninterrupted meal break over twenty (20) minutes.

27.  There have been many weeks in which Defendant’s Customer Support Services
Representatives, including Plaintiffs, worked more than five (5) shifts.

28. There have been many shifts in which Defendant’s Customer Support Services
Representatives, including Plaintiffs, worked more than nine (9) hours.

29.  Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives, including Plaintiffs,
have regularly worked over forty (40) hours per week throughout the statutory period.

30. Defendant has assigned Customer Support Services Representatives to be
“on-call” and available to work during certain designated periods outside their scheduled shifts,
which varied in frequency and duration, and in some weeks included entire weekends and/or
several nights after the Customer Support Services Representative’s shift.

31. The work performed outside shifts and/or on-call periods included responding to

inquiries from Defendant’s companies, other technical support and/or inventory or delivery
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providers, and Defendant’s managers and supervisors, and performing research as needed to
respond to such inquiries.

32. Plaintiffs and other similarly situated Customer Support Services Representatives
performed such work on most days, at various times throughout the day and/or night, and for
durations of time ranging from several minutes to several hours per day, all, if not most of which
were in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek.

33. In many weeks throughout the statutory period, Defendant required Customer
Support Services Representatives to perform such work outside of their work schedule even in
weeks in which they either did not receive any on-call pay, or received an amount of on-call pay
that was insufficient to provide them with time-and-a-half of their regular rate of pay for all
hours worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek.

Plaintiffs’ Employment

Mary Chachas

34. Plaintiff Mary Chachas was employed by Defendant as a Customer Support
Services Representative from approximately March 2014 through early January 2017.

35.  When Plaintiff Chachas started working for Defendant her annual salary was
approximately $45,000.

36.  When Plaintiff Chachas last worked for Defendant her annual salary was
approximately $52,000.

37.  Defendant classified Plaintiff Chachas as exempt from overtime.

38.  Defendant misclassified Plaintiff Chachas as exempt from overtime.

39. In or around September 2015, Defendant started paying Plaintiff Chachas a fixed
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sum of approximately $275 in “on-call” pay approximately one every four to six (4-6) weeks. In
or around August 2016, Defendant increased the on-call payment to a fixed sum of
approximately $400.

40. From December 2015 through May 2016, Plaintiff Chachas worked most, if not
all of her shifts from her home.

41.  As a Customer Support Services Representative, Plaintiff Chachas was required
to work a full-time schedule consisting of five (5) shifts per week, each lasting approximately
nine (9) hours, and additional work before and after her shifts and on days she was not scheduled
to work a full shift.

42. Plaintiff Chachas’ shifts typically began at 9:00 a.m. and continued through 6:00
—7:00 p.m., if not later.

43.  On most shifts, Plaintiff Chachas did not receive a free, uninterrupted meal period
of at least twenty (20) minutes.

44, In addition to her scheduled shifts, which generally exceeded forty (40) hours,
Plaintiff Chachas spent several additional hours per after her shifts and on weekends (including
those for which she did not receive on-call pay), performing work for Defendant such as
responding to inquiries from Defendant’s companies, other technical support and/or inventory or
delivery providers, and Defendant’s managers and supervisors, and performing research as

needed to respond to such inquiries.

Angela Mosley
45, Plaintiff Angela Mosley was employed by Defendant as a Customer Support

Services Representative from approximately September 2014 through early January 2017.
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46.  When Plaintiff Mosley started working for Defendant her annual salary was
approximately $45,000.

47.  When Plaintiff Mosley last worked for Defendant her annual salary was
approximately $50,000.

48. Defendant classified Plaintiff Mosley as exempt from overtime.

49, Defendant misclassified Plaintiff Mosley as exempt from overtime.

50. In or around September 2015, Defendant started paying Plaintiff Mosley a fixed
sum of approximately $250 in “on-call” pay approximately one every four to six (4-6) weeks. In
or around August 2016, Defendant increased the on-call payment to a fixed sum of
approximately $400.

51.  Throughout her employment, Plaintiff Mosley worked most, if not all of her shifts
from her home.

52.  As a Customer Support Services Representative, Plaintiff Mosley was required to
work a full-time schedule consisting of five (5) shifts per week, each lasting approximately nine
(9) hours, and additional work before and after her shifts and on days she was not scheduled to
work a full shift.

53. Plaintiff Mosley’s shifts typically began at 10:00 p.m. and continued through 6:00
a.m., if not later.

54.  On most shifts, Plaintiff Mosley did not receive a free, uninterrupted meal period
of at least twenty (20) minutes.

55. In addition to her scheduled shifts, which generally exceeded forty (40) hours,

Plaintiff Mosley spent several additional hours per after her shifts and on weekends (including
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those for which she did not receive on-call pay), performing work for Defendant such as
responding to inquiries from Defendant’s companies, other technical support and/or inventory or
delivery providers, and Defendant’s managers and supervisors, and performing research as

needed to respond to such inquiries.

Plaintiffs’ Attempt to Settle Pre-Litigation and Tolling of the Statute of Limitations

56. From January 2017 through August 2017, counsel for Plaintiffs and Defendant
engaged in discussions in an effort to reach a settlement and release of Defendant’s liability to
Plaintiffs for unpaid overtime wages.

57.  Inthe course of these discussions, counsel for Plaintiffs and Defendant executed a
written agreement tolling Plaintiffs’ statute of limitations under the FLSA as of January 25, 2017
and continuing through the termination of the tolling agreement pursuant to ten (10) days written
notice by either side.

58. Despite their discussions, Plaintiffs and Defendant were unable to reach a
settlement of Plaintiffs’ unpaid overtime wages.

59. Plaintiffs” counsel received written notice from Defendant’s counsel of
Defendant’s termination of the parties’ tolling agreement on August 29, 2017.

60. Pursuant to the parties’ tolling agreement, the statue of limitations applicable to
each Plaintiffs” FLSA claim should be extended by two-hundred and twenty-six (226) days, i.e
the amount of days between January 25, 2017 and ten (10) days following Defendant’s
termination of the tolling agreement on August 29, 2017.

Defendant’s Violations of Law are Willful and Ongoing

61. Defendant’s violations of the above-described federal and state wage and hour

10
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statutes and regulations were willful, arbitrary, unreasonable and in bad faith.

62.  Defendant’s wrongful acts and/or omissions/commissions, as alleged herein, were
not made in good faith, or in conformity with or in reliance on any written administrative
regulation, order, ruling, approval, or interpretation by the U.S. Department of Labor and/or any
state department of labor, or any administrative practice or enforcement policy of such
departments.

63.  Atall relevant times, Defendant knew that Plaintiffs and other Customer Support
Services Representatives worked over forty (40) hours per week and performed work outside of
their work schedule such as responding to inquiries from Defendant’s companies, other technical
support and/or inventory or delivery providers, and Defendant’s managers and supervisors, and
performing research as needed to respond to such inquiries, without receiving time-and-a-half of
their regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek.

64.  Atall relevant times, Defendant knew that Plaintiffs and other Customer Support
Services Representatives were not employed in a bona fide executive, administrative, or
professional capacity, or in the capacity of outside salespersons, or computer systems analysts,
computer programmers, software engineers, or other similarly skilled workers.

65. At all relevant times, Defendant failed to take reasonable steps to determine
whether its pay practices were compliant with the FLSA.

66. Plaintiffs and other Customer Support Services Representatives complained to
Defendant about not receiving overtime compensation but Defendant willfully failed to pay their
claimed unpaid wages and has refused to reclassify the Customer Support Services

Representatives position as non-exempt and eligible for overtime pay.

11
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67. In or around August 2016, Defendant issued an employee handbook which
provided, in part, that “any employee who believes he or she had been misclassified ha[d] a duty
to notify the Payroll Department.”

68. Defendant assured Plaintiffs and other Customer Support Services
Representatives that they would be paid in compliance with the FLSA, but continued to
misclassify them as salary-exempt employees and failed to pay them proper overtime
compensation throughout Plaintiffs’ employment and continuing with respect to
currently-employed Customer Support Services Representatives.

69. Despite being placed on notice that such time is compensable under the FLSA,
Defendant’s violations of law have continued unabated.

COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS

70.  Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) of the FLSA on their
own behalf and on behalf of:
All current and former employees of CentricsIT LLC who, at any
time during the period dating from three (3) years prior to the
commencement of this action through the date of judgment, worked
in the United States in “Centrics Support Services” performing
telephone and/or e-mail-based customer support to CentricsIT
LLC’s clients and were classified as exempt from the overtime
requirements of the FLSA.
(hereinafter referred to as the “Collective”). Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend this definition
as necessary.
71.  With respect to the claims set forth in this action, a collective action under the

FLSA is appropriate because the employees described above are “similarly situated” to Plaintiffs

under 29 U.S.C. 8 216(b). The collective of employees on behalf of whom Plaintiffs bring this

12
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collective action are similarly situated because: (a) they have been or are employed in the same
or similar positions; (b) they were or are subject to the same or similar unlawful practices, policy,
or plan; and (c) their claims are based upon the same factual and legal theories.

72.  The employment relationships between Defendant and every Collective member
are the same and differ only by name, location, and rate of pay.

73. The key legal issues are the same for every Collective member, to wit:

a. Whether Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives’
primary duties fall within any of the FLSA’s exemptions to overtime pay;

b. Whether Defendant’s Customer Support Services Representatives worked
over forty (40) hours per week and whether Defendant knew of such work;

C. Whether Defendant misclassification of its Customer Support Services
Representatives was a willful violation of the FLSA and/or whether
Defendant relied in good faith upon any provision of the FLSA or
interpretation thereof;

74.  The precise number and identities of Collective members should be readily
available from a review of Defendant’s personnel and payroll records.

COUNT I

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Individual Claim for Violation of the FLSA)

75. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege all preceding paragraphs of the Complaint inclusive,

as if fully set forth herein.

76. Plaintiffs were required by Defendant and regularly worked over forty (40) hours

a week.
77. Defendant failed to pay overtime compensation at time and a half (1.5) of
Plaintiffs’ regular rate of pay for hours in a workweek in excess of forty (40).

78. Defendant’s conduct and practices, described herein, was/is willful, intentional,

13
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unreasonable, arbitrary, and in bad faith.

79. Because Defendant willfully violated the FLSA a three (3) year statute of
limitations applies to such violation, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 8§ 255, in addition to the two-hundred
and twenty-six (226) days of tolling pursuant to Plaintiffs’ agreement with Defendant.

80.  As a result of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were illegally denied proper compensation
and overtime compensation earned, in such amounts to be determined at trial, and are entitled to
recovery of total unpaid amounts, liquidated damages, costs, reasonable attorney’s fees, and
other compensation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

COUNT I

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Collective Action Claims for Violations of the FLSA)

81. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege all the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint, as if
fully set forth herein.

82. Defendant required Customer Support Services Representatives including
Plaintiffs to work hours in excess of forty (40) per week.

83. Defendant failed to pay Customer Support Services Representatives including
Plaintiffs overtime compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half (1.5) times their regular
rate of pay for hours in a workweek in excess of forty (40).

84. Defendant’s uniform policy and practice, as described above, was/is willful,
intentional, unreasonable, arbitrary, and in bad faith.

85. Because Defendant willfully violated the FLSA, as aforesaid, a three (3) year
statute of limitations shall apply to such violation, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 255.

86. As a result of Defendant’s foregoing violations, Customer Support Services

14
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Representatives including Plaintiffs were illegally deprived of overtime compensation earned, in
such amounts to be determined at trial, and are entitled to recovery of such total unpaid amounts,
liquidated damages, costs, reasonable attorney’s fees, and other compensation pursuant to 29
U.S.C. § 216(b).

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court grant the following relief:

a. A declaratory judgment that Defendant’s wage practices alleged herein
violate the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. 8§ 201, et seq., and attendant regulations at
29 C.F.R. 88516, et seq.;

b. An order for injunctive relief ordering Defendant to end all of the illegal
wage practices alleged herein pursuant to the FLSA and related laws and
regulations;

C. An order directing Defendant, at its own expense, to investigate and

account for the number of overtime hours actually worked by Plaintiffs
and all similarly situated Collective members;

d. Judgment for damages for all unpaid overtime compensation under the
FLSA, 29 U.S.C. 88 201, et seq., and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. 8§
516, et seq.;

e. Judgment for liquidated damages pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. 8§ 201,
et seq., and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. §8 516, et seq., in an amount
equal to all unpaid overtime compensation owed to Plaintiffs and all
similarly situated Collective members during the applicable statutory
period;

f. An order directing Defendant to pay Plaintiffs’ reasonable attorney’s fees
and all costs connected with their action;

g. An incentive award for the Plaintiffs pursuant to the FLSA;

h. Such other and further relief as to this Court may deem necessary, just, and
proper.

15



Case 1:17-cv-03434-SCJ Document 1 Filed 09/08/17 Page 16 of 16

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs, Mary Chachas and Angela Mosley, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated, by and through their attorneys, hereby demand a trial by jury pursuant to Rule
38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and the court rules and statutes made and provided

with respect to the above entitled cause.

Dated: September 8, 2017

By: /s Roger W. Orlando
Roger W. Orlando (GA Bar ID: 554295)
THE ORLANDO FIRM, P.C.
Suite 400
315 West Ponce de Leon Avenue
Decatur, GA 30030
(404) 373-1800 (office)
(404) 373-6999 (fax)
roger@QrlandoFirm.com

Local Counsel for Plaintiffs

Jason T. Brown (will pro hac vice)
Nicholas Conlon (will pro hac vice)
JTB LAW GROUP, LLC

155 2nd Street, Suite 4

Jersey City, NJ 07302

(201) 630-0000 (office)

(855) 582-5297 (fax)
jtb@jtblawgroup.com
nicholasconlon@jtblawgroup.com

Lead Counsel for Plaintiffs

16
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

ATLANTA DIVISION
X
MARY CHACHAS and ANGELA MOSLEY, Individually and on
Behalf of
All Others Similarly
Situated,
Plaintiffs,
V.
CENTRICSIT, LLC,
Defendant.
X
CONSENT TO SUE

I hereby consent to be a Plaintiff in the Fair Labor Standards Act case captioned above. I
hereby consent to the bringing of any claims I may have under the Fair Labor Standards Act (for
unpaid minimum wages, overtime, liquidated damages, attorney’s fees, costs and other relief) and
applicable state wage and hour law against the Defendant(s). I further consent to bringing these
claims on a collective and/or class basis with other current/former employees of Defendant(s), to
be represented by JTB Law Group LLC, and to be bound by any settlement of this action or
adjudication by the Court.

Name: Angela Mosley

Address: 1042 Jordan Road, Dacula , GA 30019

Signature: W % Dated: 09/06/2017

Doc ID: 71d77a8b7183ccb43cad102adba8ad53b9e4fcad
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

ATLANTA DIVISION
X
MARY CHACHAS and ANGELA MOSLEY, Individually and on
Behalf of
All Others Similarly
Situated,
Plaintiffs,
V.
CENTRICSIT, LLC,
Defendant.
X
CONSENT TO SUE

I hereby consent to be a Plaintiff in the Fair Labor Standards Act case captioned above. |
hereby consent to the bringing of any claims I may have under the Fair Labor Standards Act (for
unpaid minimum wages, overtime, liquidated damages, attorney’s fees, costs and other relief) and
applicable state wage and hour law against the Defendant(s). I further consent to bringing these
claims on a collective and/or class basis with other current/former employees of Defendant(s), to
be represented by JTB Law Group LLC, and to be bound by any settlement of this action or
adjudication by the Court.

Name: Mary Chachas

Address: 400 Abbotts Mill Drive, Duluth, GA 30097

_ V\/la,rv Chathat
Signature: Dated: 09/07/2017

Doc ID: 34d5f48475ffeec062ed4047b1784c404b8c427¢e
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This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: CentricsIT Faces Former Employees Unpaid OT Claims
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